
'.I j U N I T E D N)t-T I 0 N S 

ECONOMIC 
AND 

GENERAL .. · ·~ ·.· 1 

E/CN.4/Sub.l/SR.io 

l5 Jun~ 1950 

ENGLISh 
ORIGINAL: FRE;NClJ 

SOCIAL COUNCIL. 

ca.fivliSSION . ON IfUI!JJ\JJ RIGHTS 

SUB-C<J;l.MISSION ON FREEDCM d'.B' IN:F'Ol~IATION AND OF 'l'HE PRESS 

Fourth Session 

SUMMARY RECORD OF TBE Sl!i'IENTY ·.F'D!'TH i-;EETING 

Held at Hotel ~arque, Montevideo 
on Friday, 19 May 1950, at 3.30 p.~. 

C ONTEN'l'S:. 

Draft of an internationalcode of ethics 
{E/CN.4/SUb.l/ll4) {continued) · · 

Chairman: 

Ra;p;t>orteur: 

MY. FOHTAINA 

Mr. JORDAN 

ia!,CEIVED 

JUN 2 <:J 1950 
. ATIONS 

uNITt:e_N S ~ 
ARCHIVE . '"_. 

(Uruguay) 

{United Kingdom of 
Great .Britain and 
Northern Ireland) 

. ~; 



E/CN .4/sub.l/SR.75 
PagEf 2 

~1er:ibers: Mr. AQUINO 

Mr. A£.:.KOUL 

ll...r. AZMI 

Mr. BINDER 

Mr. P. R. CHANG 

.Mr. DE...l)IJER 

Mr. GAHDRI 

Nr. GERAUD 

Mr. SILVA CARVALLO 

Representative of a specialized agency: 

lvlr. FARR 

(Philippines) 

(Lebe..non) 

(EGYpt) 

(United States of .Amorica) 

(Crdna) 

(Yu.e;oslevia) 

(India) 

(li'rance) 

(Chile) 

United Nations Ed.uc~:.timlal, 
Scientific w:1d Cultural 
Organization (u:msco) 

~epresentatives of a non~governmental or~izat1on: 

Category A: 

Secretariat: 

. Miss CASTRO ) 
lvlis s IARGUIA) 

Mr. RUMl?:s::FlEY 

J:vlr. ROOAN 

Vlorld Federation of United 
Nations Associations (vJ:Jl'UJ:J\) 

Repl'esentative of the 
Secretary~neral 

Secretary of the Sub-Commission 

/DRA.FT OF AiiJ 



E/CJ.II.4/Sub ,1/&R. 75 
Page '3 · ·· .. · · 

DRIWI' OF AN IJ:.lTERNATIOlYfAL .COilE ()F ETH!CS (E/CN ,4/Sub.l/114) 
(continued) 

1. The CEAI~~ asked the Sub-Commission to 

continue its consideration of the first article of the 

draft of an international code of ethics (E/CN.4/Sub,l/114}, 

anti tled ''To tell the truth l-1 i thout malice or · pl>e judice". 

2. Mr. AQUINO pointed out that the English text 

besan with the word ''Everyone", yet the verbs in too 

succeeding sentences were in the plural. Accordillgly, a 

draft ins change should. be made in the English text. 

Mr. JORDAN suggested that the word ''All" should 

be used instead of' ''Everyone 11
• 

It wae so decided. 

4. Mr~ JORDAN said that he would not press the 

change he had suggested at the preceding meeting for the 

first sentence of the first article. He was prepared to 

asree that the phrase "shall ensure" should be replaced . 
. . 

by the wordine, suggested by Mr. Gandhi: "shall make th6 · 

utmost endeavour to ensure 11
• 

It was so decided. 
. . . 

Mr. GERAUD proposed the deletion of the word 

~unb iaaed" • 

• 

:'\'' /6. Mr. AQUD!O 

'·, 



E/CN~4/Sub ,l/SR.75 
Page 4 

6. Mr. AQUIHO pointed out that in English the words 

''objective" and nunbiased" were not entirely synon;ymoue. 

There was a slight difference between them which should be 

retained in the text. 

7. Mr. GEBAUD stressed. the point that a political 

commentator could not be presented from showing a certain 

amount of pe.rtiali ty in his choice of nev1s items to support 

his argument. The article 1 as 1 t stood, ap:~teared to apply 

to only one form of journalism, reporting, and to exclude 

journalism. mainly concerned with the expression of o:pinion1 

the importance of which should not be underestimated. 

8. The CliAIR4AN reminded Nr. 06'raud that the 

distinction which must be drawn between those two forms of 

journalism had been clearly brought out at the preceding 

Dteeting. The commentator did not always gather the 

inf'or-mation which he used. On the other hand, the first article 

was basically concerned with the gathering, transmission and 

dissemination of information as such. The interpretation of 

information and the safeguards which si;lould be set up in 

connexion with it were specifically de~t with in. the second 

paragraph of the second article of the draft code, relating 

to the "deliberate distortion or suppression of essential 

facts". 

/9. Mr. GERAUD 



the two as})6cts of the Journalist' e function. T,he great 

journalists of; 19th eenttU"Y France, who were recognized: 

,E/CN ~4/Sub.l/Sih 75 
·Page 5 

as at least as able . and forceful as contumporalj" journalists,. 

. . . " used to minglE> .:fe.ct· and· coll:lii'lfint.. Mr •. Geraud conceded. 

that an a:i.'gUlOOnt could: be made in favour .of separatiil(3 

editorials and commimt fr..)lll factual.a.ccounts;- but there 

was a mixed form of joUrne.liem which could neithe.r b~ 

repudiated' nor condemned.: 

10. 1-1r. AQUINO obsei"Ved: t;bgt· the .. school of journe.lisin 

to which he beloD.ged: consids:Nd. it a violation of. professional 

ethics for a jotn:'l'i,a.J.~st t~- ;1nta·rup:.n:.1Se his own comments in 

a factual account except it' he lias .a co~ntator -whose · ·· 

specific taek·it:w.a.s ."Yo w.~~te ·~.e~._i:torial or to publish a. 

aeries o::t' signed articles. 'Those were two distinct ·functions. 

and the~· should ·be separated •.. The job of a jow.-naliet was 

one of the most complex Jobs in the world; 1n drafting a . code 

of ethics; the Sub-Commission shoulct especially bear that 

in mind .. 

ll. Mr.·.AZKOUL felt: that the discussion was becoming 

somel·Ihat confused because alJ. the members did not ap:pear 

to interpret the article und~r discussion in the., same wey. 

For a newpa:per the proble1,11 was not. to makE? a clear 

separation between facts ~d· ideas, but to ,~;~,nabla the reader at 

e.ll times to d1et;tnguiah between what was u:act" and what 

was the impression or conjecture of the commentator. 

/12. M.r. AZKOUL 



. ·E /CN -4/sub .1/SR. 75 
Page 6 

12. Mr. AZKOUL admitted that the article might be 

phrased somm·1hat better, but the i<:tea it 0xpressed seemec1 

clear enough. The purpose of saying that information should 

be unbiased. was to impose upon the person enge.gecl in 

gathering, transmitting and disseminating information tho 

obligation to do so without preconceiving idee.s and with no intent 

to conceal or d.istort the truth. But that did not mean that . 

the journalist should not select the aspects of the 

information he wished to report; besides, the mere observation 

of events implied a certain.amount of subjectivity which 

could not De disregarded. .In the ~~rench text, . the difficl,l}.ty 

might be overcome by substituting t4e word tmpa:·tiales, 

which corresponded more closely to the word "unbiased" in 

the EnglJsh text, for the phrase depourvues d.e ~rti pris. 

13. Mr. GERAUD remarked that a journalist writing 

an e<'.i torial in a pol:i tical newspaper could. not be expected 

to be tmpartial,; however, that did not prevent him from 

having the basic quality of honesty. 

14. Mr. AZKOUL stressed that the impartiality he 

had in minct applie.d exclusively to the presentaM.on of facts. 

All the adjectives used in the article applied to information. 

Thus the journalist could be boWld to report accurate 

facts but could not be prevented from having ideas which 

might even be false, and from expressing them. 

/The simplest 



: E/dN.-4/Sub.·l/SR.75 
Page 7 

'!'he simplest solution, therefore, was ·to· dra:w the l:.moo~~ted ' 
·'> • 

distinction betWeen the two functions and· to insert a · 

separate article on the duties of the comraentator, if it 

should be found subsequently that they were not covered by' 

other provisions of the code • 
.. ' ' .. ' . 

15. The CHAJ::BMA.N supported Mr. Azkoul 'a· suggestion. 

He proposed that, for the time being, the Sub-Commission 
,. ' ' 

should consider the article only from the point of view of 

information as such. It might reconsider that decision at 

the second'reading, if necessary. 

16. Mr. GERAUD was op::;>osed to that proposal. He 

insisted that the first sentence shoud be redrafted to 

read. "All those engaged in the gatherins, transmission, 

dissemination Of infozmatiOn fUld in COIIJmenting thereon. eo II 

He asked for a vote on that wording. 

17. Mr. AZKOUL pointed out that the basic purpose 

of the first article was to ensure that information should 

be true. Mr. aeraud would requtre the reporter a.a well as the 

coll'l.lllentator, to fulfill that condition. In order to meet 

his point without altering the text 1n principle, the 

Sub-commission could accept his redraft but would have to delete 

everything after the word "accurate 11
• 

/18. Mr. GIWIDHI 

' ~ .! 



. ·E/CN·.4/sub ... l/SR.75 
Page 8 

18. Mr. GANDHI understood Mr. G~raud 's desire to place 

the reporter as well as .the commentato:e under the obligations 

stated in the first article. It must be acknmdedged that 

a comnentator might sometimes yield to the temptation to 

d:i.stort or suppress certain elements of the truth in order 

to strengthen }lis argument. · Mr. Gandhi would thereforet support 

Mr. eteraud 's proposal. 

19. Mr. BINDER noted that in the practice of journalism . 

in his cmmtry 1 a clear distinction was made between 

the presentation of facts and of opinions. In that connex.ion, 

he quoted' article 5o~ the code of ethics of the American 

Society of Newspaper Editors. In the United States, 

news:paper editors ra,lied for the truth of information upon the 

fact that they h~ selected the man assigned to gather that 

infol"'!lation. In addition, ne'·1spe.pers tended more and more 

to print the :names of the corl4 espondents responsible for 

despatches, a system which had the dual advantage of 

apportioning responsibility and of enabling the intelligent :reader 

to seek his information from eou::rces which he considered 

reliable, 

/20. Mr. DEDIJER 



E/CN.4/Sub.l/SR.75 
Page 9 

20. Mr. DEDIJER supported Mr. Geraud' s proposal. He also 

favoured deletion of the '"ord "unbiased" but wanted the words 

"accurate and objective11 retained. He drew lv'JX. Binder1 s attention 

to the fact that iii all countries, there were newpapers or journa-

lists who violated the truth and even went so far as to fabricate 

information out of whole cloth to serve their cause. It was there ... 

fore important to ensure the veracity of the facts reported, by a 

detailed provision, if necessary. 

21. Mr. Gru~DHI suggested that since the idea was to include 

both comment and reporting and that while the commentator was 

free to say what he liked he was not free to garble or tvlist the 

facts, it would be appropriate to say: ". • .shall make the utmost 

endeavour to ensure that the information the public receives is 

factually accurate and objective". That would also meet N.r. Dedijer 1 s 

point. 

22. The. CHAIWJAN asked for a vote on the .first sentence drafted as 

follows. "All engaged in the gathering, transmission and dissemi-

nation of' information and in cca:.menting thereon shall make the 

utmost endeavour to ensure that the information that the public 

receives is factually accurate and objective." 

' . 
The first sentence of the first article Has adopted in that 

form by 8 votes to none, with 3 abstentions.· 

/23 • lvir. AQ.UIN 0 



E /CN. 4 /Sub .l/SR. 75 
···page. io: · · .. · 

23. Mr. AQUINO explained that he had abstaiood from 
. . 

voting because he still felt -- and it had seemed that the 

majol·ity of the Sub-Commission had agl'eed with that view at 

the beGinning of the discussion -- that a clistinction shoulrl 
.. 

be drawn between the functions of the commentator nnd. those 

of the reporter. He conce<:'l.ed that the commentator ~-hould . 
.. -.•'-:.\·"); .. 

have the same respect for truth f~ the re~orter, but the 

statement of that obliGation would come more ap1)ropriately in 

a special article on that subject. 

24. The CHAIRMAN requestecl the Sub-Commission to 
' ' 

consider the second sentence. He reminded it the.t Mr. Jordan 

had proposed at the previous meeting that the words "whenever 

-
poesible 11 should be inserted after the words "shall be checked". 

25. Mr. AQUINO could not accept that addition, us it 

introduced into the code an escape clause which could easily 

be invoked to justify ~ failure to fulfil the obligations 

laid dmm in it. 

26. Mr. AZKOUL also thought it essential that the 

principles in the code should be stated affirmatively and 

catecorically in order to emphasize that they were rules for 

' 

the )?rofeasion. It might, however, be made clear at the end 

of the preamble that-·the· ·princ-1p-lea etn-te(l d.t{ the .code 

constituted a ata.ndal'd of achievement whiclf' journaliat.s ouBh.t .to. 

/strive to 



E /CI~. 4 /s nb .1/s:R ;75 
PaGe 11 

strive to uttain in all circumstances. rrhat would. be a: better 

solution than the ir...se:::'tion of escape clauses such as that 

:pro:posed by Mr. Jordan. That question could., ho'Wever, be 

settled at the seco11d l--eading. 

27. Mr. AQ.UII~O reminded the Sub-Commission that he 

had suggested at the previous meeting that only the first 

sentence of the first article shoulO. be' .J:"Ctainec~. 'I·he · 

principles proclniiii0d. ~.r.a. the coc.c shou.ld. be stated in very 

general te1'IIis and the way in 11hich they should be applied 

should not be apE>cifiad. Re ·therefore made the 'fo1'mal 

:proposa:. that only the f'irat eenwnce of the fh·st arM.cle should 

be retained.~ 

28. Mr. GAlfJDHI obser\·ed that the last three sentences 

imbocUec'l. id.eas \vhich had no relation to those in the. !'irst 

al'ticle and he therefore tho"J.ght that the reasons advanced 

by Ml'• Aquino \-lere not in themselves sufficient to justify 

the proposed deletion. 

29. Mr. AQUINO thought that the words 11factually 

accm•aw and objt:>ctive" in the first sentence covered ali the 

ideas set out in the remaindel· of' the article. Furthermore 1 

the injunction laid clovm ·in the first sentence was strengthened 

by the heading of' the article itself'. 

/30. Mr. AZKOUL 



E/CN.4/sub.l/SR.75 
Page 12 

30. ~Ir. AZKOUL did not '·rish to commit himself to the 

view that the last three sentences v1ere tUmecessary, but he 

thought that the code should lay down not only general 

principles, but also specific rules to cover all the cases of 

failure to respect professional ethics to be avoided. ·rt 

would the~fore be better to retain the article as it stood. 

31. Mr. N:}.UT_NO d.reVI Mr. Az.l;:oul 's attention to the 

text of the second paragraph of the secon1l aJ."'ticle, which 

listed in detail the pl4 ofessional olfences 'Which journalists 

ought not to commit. Accordingly, if the last three sentences 

of the first article were retained, the Sub-Commission would. 

then have before it the second article, in 'Which the principles 

lareaay stated Vlere more fully elaborated. The Sub-COllllll.ission, 

however, ought to respect the fund.amental rule oi' 

journalism -- the greatest possible conciseness. 

32. Mr. DEDIJER saw Mr. Aquino 'a point, but thought 

that the last three sentences of the first article were useful 

because they pointed out the practical consequences of the 

general principle stated in the first sentence. If the Sub

Commission aCI.opted Mi·. Aquino's position, it would lo.sically 

have to compress the entire code into the single phrase: 

''speak the truth n. 

/33· Mr. DEDIJER 



33. :t>Ir. DEDIJER cited an .extract from ·a bull'7tin 

r:.jcn .4/suo.+./sR. 75 
:Pa[;~ lJ 

published in the. United Gtates by the USSR Emba.ssy to show 

tl~t the recommendn~ion that jou.~alists should check every 

item of information and. should not suppress or distort a:n,y 

essential fact was certainly not unnecessary ... If all 

journalists accepted that recommendation, many inaccurate and. 

tendentious news itemn a.'1d- those likely to disturb good 

relations among nations vlould. be eliminated. He wus 

therefore op~csed to¥~. Aquino's ,ro~os~l. 

34. Furtherm.r~re 1 .it was essential that due stress should. 

be laid in the: code upon the journalists obligation to checl: 

the information he published •. Such an injunction should, in 

his opinion, be addl>essed1 not ao much to editors >tho, as 

~Ir. Binder had observed1 had an obvious right to place 

their trust in the P,ereons they selected, as to the 

reporters themselves; the latter could use it not mel"'ly as 

directive but also as a defence against any pressure to 

induce .. them to d:l.sseminate news of· which they could not 

conscientiously t;ua:;:-~tee the accuracy. 

/35. Mr.. AZKOUL 



. -. E/CN.:4/Su.b,1/SR.75 
Page 14 

35. Mr. AZKOUL reminC:..ed Mr. Binier that even in 

the United States it sometimes hap:>ened that the checKing 

of fact was not d.one very thorouehly. He cited the 

example of a young Palestini.an who he.d clr-.jme<l to "be a 

representative of King Abdullc.th of Jorden i-:hose statements at 

a :press conference at Leke Success had been hea:--llinea_ by 

United States newspa:peru without ch0cking the truth of his 

claim. It was not unnoceGsary 1 therefore, to emrhv.size 

the need for checkj_ng facts. 

36. Mr. Il11"'DER obser--ved the.t the incident ·-- which 

was not typical -- might also be e.xpla:J.ned by the apathy 

of the representatives oi' the Are.b btates e.t Lake Success 

at the time it occurred. 

37. Mr. JORDAN thought that the Sub-Commission 

could not enter into as much detail as Mr. Azkoul would 

like. Journalists coulrl not be comJ,.'Olled to check the 

credentials of every pel'son who held a press conference 

when their essential duty was simply to report the 

statements made to them, regaTdless of their content. 

38. Mr. AZKOUL thought that journalists could not be p;rmitt.ed 

to Ter1i';y the oreeetl.tia.ls of peraotlB whose ate.teJW.nts tbay 

/took down if 

Ill Hit I I M If.~ , <I' 



took dmm if they did not 'H ish to do so. In the case 

tmd.er considerat:1.on, the representatives of the Arab 

States bed tried vainly to prevent publicity being given 

to the statements of a person who they knew to be un 

39. Mr. DEDIJER proposed. that the second sentence 

should read: ''EverJ item of information, wheneYer opon 

to doubt, shall be cher:ked". 

40. Mr. JORDAH vl i thdrew his :proposal in favour of 

Mr. Dedijer's. · 

41. Mr. AZKOiJL, recalling that Mr~ Geraud had 

E/cn ~l.~/f ,.,.b ~1/8I~~ 75 
Page 15 

proposed at the previous meeting that the word ''essential" 

should be deleted, pointed out that although the journalist 

had a right to suppress facts which were not essential, he 

could not distort any fac-t. 

· 42. Mr,-_GERI1.UD sucgested the following wording: 

" • • • • and no fact distorted or essential fact suppressed" • 

43. The CHAIRMAN called for the vote on the second· 

sentence 1 to read as follows: ''Every item of inf'ormation1 

whenever open to doubt 1 shall be checked and' no fact diStorted 

or essential fact suppressed". 

The second sentence of the first article was adopted 

by 8 votes to none, with 3 abstentiops. 

/44. Mr. GANDHI 



i. E/CN t4/Sub.l/SR.75 
Puge 16 

44. Mr. GANDHI observed that· the third sent~nce 

a·pplied only to the person d.iredtly responsible for ::;>ublishing 

information, Ylhe:reao that obl:i.gation should ext0nd to all 

•1ho Ylere party to su.ch publishing in a:ny cal)acity. He 

therefore pro::;>osed. that the f'ollowir1g ph!'ase should be insertecl 

in the third sentence after the word. "publish": "or· be in 

any Ylay party. to the publishing of ••• " 

It was so decided. ___ ....._..,_ 

45. Mr. AZKOU~ pointed. out the..t .a general principle 

applicable to tho cod.e e.a e~ v1hole was etated in the four-i:lh 

sentence and. proposecl that the Sub..ComnhQion ah_oulo" :L.'es.erve 

its decision regarding :whore it sl\o1.ud be ;wlaced. 

It was so dec.id.ed. 

46. The CHAIRWi.N called for the vote on the first 

article as a 11hole, as amondcd. 

The firs~_t1.~ '1a.s afi£.Pted by 8 votes !2~none_t;.~ 

3 e.bsten!_ions. 

47. Mr. GERAUD asked \olhether the C:do:ption of the 

article :imp~,~ed the adoption of :tts heading. In his opinion7 

it should read: "To be truthful''· 

48. The CHAIRMAN said that all d.rE::.fting questions 

would be considered at th~ second rf:ad.ing. 




